
10 North Main Street . Cedar City, UT 84720
435-586-2950 . FAX 435-586-4362

www.cedarcity.org

CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETIN G
NOVEMBER2 2022

5:30 P.M.

f,layor
Garth O. Green

Council Member'
TerriW. Hartley
Craig E.lsom
W. Tyler Melling
R. Scott Phillips
Ronald Riddle

City Manager
Paul Bitlmenn

Cedar City

IV. Public Asenda
Public Comments

o update from UDor regarding the traffic study at the intersection of Main Street &
Fiddlers Canyon Road. Jared Beard

a

1 . Consider waiving a portion of the water rights acquisition fee for lots in Equestrian Pointe
Subdivision. Garrett White/Jonathan Stathis

2. consider a partial refund of rental fees for the cedar city chamber of commerce's use of
the Cross Hollow Arena. Carter Wilkey

3. consider entering into an agreement with Best Friends conceming the community cat
Program. Arlyn Bradshaw/Darin Adams/Tyler Romeril

4. Public hearing to consider an ordinance amending chapter 26 Article v regarding the
parking requirements for developments with 100 or more units. HR Brown/TyleiRomeril

Slatr
5. Public hearing to consider an ordinance amending chapt er 26 Article III regarding street

requirements in the R-E Residential Estates zone. Jonathan stathis/Tyler Romeril
6. consider recommendations for Economic Development Rural communities opporh:nity

Grant Application. Danny Stewart
7. consider bids for the Airport Road/Kitty Hawk Drive Traffic Signal. Shane Johnson
8. Consider bids for the North Tank Re-coating project. Shane Johnson
9. consider an ordinance amending chapter 39 regarding application questions for RAp rax

applicants. Tyler Romeril

Administration
5862953

Airport
467 -9408

Building and Zoning
865-4519

Economic Development
586-2770

Parks & Recreation
86s-9223

Public Works
5A6-)91)

\, t.

Cedar City
Festival City USA

The City Council meeting will be held in the Council Chambers at the City Office, 10 North
Main Street. The agenda will consist of the following items:

I. Call to Order

II. Aeenda Order Aooroval

n. AdministrationAqenda
. Mayor and Council Business

o StaffComments

V. Business Agenda
Public

City Engineer
586-2963



10. consider terminating a lease with the clark Brothers concerning the city's effluent water
from the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Mavor Green

Dated this 3lst day of October, 2

Savage, MMC
Cedar City Recorder

CERTIFICATE OF DELIVERY:

The undersigned duly appointed and acting recorder for the munici pality of Cedar City, Utah, hereby
certifies that a copy of the foregoing Notice ofAgenda was delivered to the Daily News, and each
member of the goveming body this 3 1't day of O ctober,2l22.

R Savage, MMC
Cedar City Recorder

Cedar City Corporation does not discriminate on the basis ofrace, color, national origin, sex, religion,
age or disability in anployment or the provision of services.

Ifyou are planning to attend this public meeting and, due to a disability, need assistance in accessing,
understanding or participating in the meeting, please notifu the City not later than the day before the
meeting and we will try to provide whatever assistance may be required.



To:

From:

Council Meeting Date:

Subject:

Discussion:

CEDAR CITY
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
STAFF INFORMATION SHEET

Mayor and City Council

Jonathan Stathis

November 2, 2022

Consider waiving a portion of the water rights acquisition fee
for lots in Equestrian Pointe Subdivision.

Recently, amendments have been made to the water acquisition
ordinance which require "dry" lots in existing subdivisions to pay
the water acquisition fee at the time of building permit. Lots in
Equestrian Pointe have access to a private secondary irrigation
system which provides water for landscaping.

Due to the private secondary irrigation system in Equestrian
Pointe, there will likely be less impact on the City's water system.
Based on this, there has been a request to gmnt a refund for a

portion ofthe water acquisition fee that was paid for a building lot
in Equestrian Pointe.

Currently, for dry lots in existing single-family subdivisions there

are 2 options for the water acquisition fee as follows:

- No conservation (0.91 ac-ft/lot, more than 3,000 ft2 of turf):
$26,E34/ac-ff. * 0.91 ac-tulot = $24,418.94

Conservation (0.60 ac-ff/lot, less than 3,000 ft2 ofturQ
$26,834/ac-ft * 0.60 ac-ft/lot: $16,100.40

Assuming no outdoor irrigation use, the required duty would be

0.295 ac-ft per lot. This is based on 8,000 gallons ofaverage
monthly indoor water use on an annual basis. The following
calculation shows the proposed fee for indoor use only in
Equestrian Pointe:

Indoor Use only (0.295 ac-ft/lot, no outdoor irrigation):
$26,8341ac-fr. * 0.295 ac-fUlot : $7,916.03

I



There are cunently 16 lots remaining in Equestrian Pointe that
could be eligible for a reduced water acquisition fee based on this
calculation.

On October 3, 2022, a building permit was issued for a lot located
at 1310 North 3575 West. In order to obtain the building permit,
the full water acquisition fee was paid in the amount of
924,418.94. The owner and contractor have contacted the City and
requested that a refund be issued.

The following calculation shows the refund that is proposed by
City Staffbased on a reduced duty for indoor use only:

Retund amount : 524,418.94 - S7,916.03 : $16,502.91

There are two items in regard to this request that are requested to
be considered by the City Council:

Please consider whether to grant a refund for a portion ofthe
water acquisition fee that was paid for the building lot located
at 1310 North 3575 West. The proposed refund would be in the
amount of $16,502.91.

2. Please consider whether to add an item in the City's Fee
Schedule for a water acquisition fee that is solely for dry lots
located in Equestrian Pointe. The lots would need to have
access to the private secondary irrigation system. The proposed
fee for a single-family residential lot in Equestrian Pointe
would be $7,916.03.

2



TO

CEDAR CITY COUNCIL
AGENDAITEM 3

DECISION PAPER

Mayor and City Council

Darin Adams

26 October2022

Community Cat Program MOU

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

PROBLEM: For the past year, the Shelter has experienced a dramatic increase
in cats being brought to the shelter. Many ofthe cats brought in or
dropped offhave been feral. This means that the cats are
unadoptable, and the only disposition is for a rescue to take the
cats or for the cats to be euthanized. Many ofthe local rescues,
including Best Friends can only take so many cats and the rate of
intake has exceeded the rate of animals leaving the shelter to
rescue organizations. This has caused an increase in euthanization,
thereby causing our Shelter to be outside the parameters to be
considered a no-kill shelter.

RECOMMENDATIoN: Accept an Mou that has been drafted to partner with Best Friends
Animal Sanctuary to provide training, resources, and support.



oa
Best Friends

Community Cat Proiect Agreement

This Community Cat Proiect Agreement (the "Agreement'') is entered into this 

-dayof-2022byandbetl,lteenBestFriendsAnimalSociety
("Best Friends"), a Utah nonprofit corporation and Cedar City, a Utah municipal
corporation ("Cedar City"). Best Friends and Cedar City will be referred to
collectively in this Agreement as the "Parties."

RECITALS

The following recitals are relied upon by the Parties entering into this Agreement:

WHEREAS, Best Friends owns and manages an animal sanctuary in Kanab, Utah, and
from this headquarters location is also engaged in a wide range ofno-kill programs
and partnerships aimed at bringing about a day when there are "No More Homeless
Pets."@ These activities include, among other things: (a) national public awareness

campaigas, [b) extensive animal rescue operations, including public-private
partnerships like our operation of the Mission Hills Adoption and Spay and Neuter
facility as well as the operation ofthe NKLA PetAdoption Center, and (c) the
promotion and sponsorship oflocal and regional proiects oriented around the goal

ofbringing about a day of No More Homeless Pets, including adoptions, high volume
spay and neuter clinics, trap-neuter-vaccinate-return (TNVR), and other non-lethal
projects intended to reduce the killing ofdogs and cats and increase the number of
animal live outcomes. Best Friend's work is made possible by the personal and
financial support ofa grassroots nerwork of members and community partners
across the nation.

WHEREAS, Cedar City is a Utah municipality with a population over 37,000 and is

the county seat of lron County. Through its municipal employees, the city operates

animal control-related functions and provides sheltering services for companion
animals in the city.

WHEREAS, Cedar City approved an ordinance establishing a community cat prolect
(CCP) on October 26,2022;

WHEREAS, Best Friends and Cedar City desire to cooperate in the CCP, which is

widely recogaized as a critical program for shelters dedicated to achieving no kill
status in their communities;

.9, SAVE THEM ALL
Atlanta . Kanab . Los Angeles . New York City . Salt take City

a6t F.i.rd3 arind Socicly
5001 Angel Canyon Road. Kanab. UI 84741

bestfirends.org



.9, SAVE THEM ALL

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to define in writing the terms and
conditions ofBest Friends'and Cedar City's participation in CCP; and to define the
obligations, expectations, and responsibilities of Cedar City regarding the grant
funds.

To achieve the high levels ofsuccess mapped out in our goals while using our
resources most efficiently, Cedar City agrees that it will do the following;

. not impound community cats simply for being at-large;
o provide the CCP staff with locations where there are complaints or large

colonies;
. release at trapping site any cat who is already ear-tipped (which indicates

the cat has already been spayed/neutered, provided with vaccinations and
flea preventativeJ;

. assist CCP staffin returning spayed/neutered and vaccinated program cats to
their original locations whenever possible;

. assist with transport of surgery cats to/from the veterinary provider
whenever possible;

. educate the public about the benefits of RTF and targeted TNVR;

. assist CCP staff in mitigating complaints in instances where members of the
public are particularly hostile about the cats being returned;

o work with Best Friends to revise current animal ordinances that may
interfere with the implementation and long-term sustainability of the CCP;

o provide CCP with contact information of residens calling dispatch
requesting cat pick up in the field, as long as the contact information is not
considered protected, private or controlled pursuant to Utah's Government
Records Access Management Act; and

o provide CCP geo-codable addresses if an animal control officer takes
possession ofa cat.

Agree to meet with Best Friends representatives at regular intervals (suggested six
month intervals) in order to discuss the effectiveness ofthe program, discuss and
provide solutions to any concerns of Cedar City regarding the Program, and to
assess data collected during the program. Cedar City and Best Friends agree to
schedule and conduct t}tese meetings in good faith and share public information
collected by all Parties to allow the maximum effectiveness ofthe Program,

ao
Best Friends

Atlanta ' Kanab . Los Angeles . New York City . Salt Lake City

1. Obligations ofCedar City to Best Friends

a..t F i.rit Ar|ird 6ocirt,
5001 ArEal Canyon Road. Kanab, UT 84741

b€Btfiiends.oq



oa

2. Obligations ofBest Friends to Cedar City

To achieve the mutual goals of the Parties during the term ofthe Program, while
using our resources most efficiently, Best Friends commits to the following terms as

previously discussed between the Parties:
o 1000/o funding for the duration of the pilot program, which includes:

- All spay and neuter surgeries and other medically needed procedures
- All required vaccinations for returned cats, including rabies and FVRCP

- Purchase of equipment such as traps and dens;

. Staffing to implement and execute program;
o Training for shelter staff and animal controt officers on all components of an

RTF program, including resident conflict resolution, mediation services and

use of humane deterrents;
o Mentorship and Baining for shelter's volunteer program, including the

creation of a shelter-based foster program; and

.ProvidespayandneuterandtrappingassistancetocedarCityresidents'

4. Default and Termination

3. Term

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Agreement and programs included

herein shall continue for a period ofthree [3) years from the date of commencement

ofthe program. Parties agree to conduct review meetings annually in order to

review thJ effectiveness, improvements to be made and potential obstacles to t'1,e

program in order to create the greatest potential for success and long-term

sustainability of the Program'

.9,

Termination by Cedar City. Cedar City may terminate this Agreement upon written

notice to Best iriends in the event ofthe following events of default and where Best

Friends fails to cure said default within 14 calendar days after receipt ofnotice

thereof:
(i) By its actions or statements, Best Friends materially harms Cedar City in its

reasonable judgment; or
(ii) Best Frilnds files for bankruptry or sells, assigns, or transfers the maiority of

itiassets to another entity, or ceases to operate as an animal supply and services

company.

Termination by Best Friends. Best Friends may terminate this Agreement upon

written noticeio Cedar City in the event of the fotlowing events ofdefault and where

cedar city fails to cure said default within 14 calendar days after receipt of notice

thereof:
Best Friends Anr aa SocretY

Best Friends

SAVE THEM ALL
Atlanta . Kanab . Los Angeles . New York City . Salt Lake City



aa

.9, SAVE THEM ALL

(D Cedar City fails to carry out their obligations as set out within this
Agreemeng including as within the reasonable iudgment of Best Friends, failing to
carry out the Program in the spirit in which it is entered and with the goal ofsaving
as many animal lives as possible; or
(iD By its actions or statements, Cedar City materially harms the reputation of
Best Friends, as determined by Best Friends in its reasonable judgment

Best Friends may immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or any
further obligation upon written notice to Cedar City in the event that Best Friends
determines that it lacks the financial ability to continue to support the program.

5. Proprietarylnformation

Cedar City, its successors, and assigns, will not supply or disclose any proprietary
Information, as defined below, to anyone not employed by Best Friends. iedar City
will immediately notify Best Friends if it believes anyone has compromised the
security of the Proprietary Information.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "proprietary Information,' includes Best
Friends' members or membership list, donor lis! newsletter mailing list, Network
Charities members list, and any other list of Best Friends donors ana supporters.

6. Other

The terms of this Agreement shall bind the respective successors and assigns ofeach
party. The Parties agree tha! should any clause or provision of this Agreement be
held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidif ofsuch
clause or provision shall not otherwise affect the remaining provisions ofthis
Agreemenl This is the entire agreement between t}te parties and supersedes any
other verbal or written statements, representations, or promises. Tliis agr""m"nt
may be signed in counterparts. Any modifications to this Agreement muit be in
writing and signed by Best Friends and Cedar City.

7. Choice oflaw/Venue

This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of
the State of Utah, without regard to conflicts of laws. Any lawsuit arising out ofor
related to this agreement \rvill be filed exclusively in a court of competent
jurisdiction in the State ofutah. Alternatively, the parties may jointly agree to
resolve such dispute using voluntary non-binding mediation or binding arbitration,
to be held in Kanab, Utah or such other location as may be mutually agieed to by the
Parties. In the event the Parties elect to submit the dispute for binding arbitration,

Best Friends

Aflanta . Kanab . Los Angeles . New York City . Salt l",ate City

A.rt F1irn6 Ar{rd Sociqty
5001 Angel Canyoo noad, Kanab. UT 8474 1

be6tfii€nds.or!



oa

.9, Best Friends

SAVE THEM ALL

the matter shall be decided by a single arbitrator iointly selected by the Parties.

Although tlle arbitration shall be conducted according to the rules ofthe American

Arbitration Association (AAA) the Parties shall not be required to initiate arbitration
by filing with AAA.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. By affixing their signatures

below, the individuals signing on behalf of the Parties warrant they are authorized

to enter into this Agreement and intend to be bound by same'

Atlanla . Kanab . Los Angeles . New York City . Salt take City

Cedar City Best Friends Animal SocietY

N Name:_..--
Signature
Date: 

--

Date: 

-...--

B..l Friards Ariltd EodatY
sOOt AngelCanyoo Road. KarEb UTE4T4l

b€stlticndB.orq

Signature:--



aa SAVE
THEM
ALL

.9.

E .t Fril.i(l.^r*nd Soc3,
50Ol ArE6l Canyon Road. r\ahab, UT 84741

bestfri€n(,s.o?g



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

CEDARCIryCOUNCIL
AGENDA ITEMS.I.I.
DECISIONPAPER I

Mayor and City Council

City Attomey

October 26,2022

Chapter 26 Article V - Parking Requirements for Developments
with 100+ units.

DISCUSSION:

On September 7, 2022, the City Council considered amending the City's parking requirements
on four-unit dwellings or more based on a parking study completed by Horrocks Engineering
(see the attached study). The recommendations from this study were passed by the City Council
on September 14,2022. This study further suggested that the larger the number ofunits the lower
the parking ratio needed to be. HR Brown, a developer, is bring this ordinance amendment
through asking the City to amend its parking ordinance by setting a 1 parking stall per bedroom
calculation on all developments that have 100 units or more.

Staffhave no objections to the proposed changes. The Planning Commission revie\yed the
proposed ordinance and gave the revision a positive recommendation (see the attached minutes).

Please consider approving the ordinance revision for Chapter 26 Article V.



I. PUBLIC TIEARING
Ordinance Text Amendment - Chapter 26, Section V-2.D
regarding Required Parking for Residential Uses
Ranch

@ecommendation)

HRBrod
Old Sonel

EBirown: We're asking for an ordinance text change based on the parking study.
Horrocks study showed a decrease as the units went up; parking occupanciei weni
down from 610Z to 50oZ for up to 112 units. Ours will be 264 units, maybe less. per
th9 study, it showed .7 per bedroom and 1.4 per unit. That,s not enough parking for
what we want to do. 3 weeks ago, City Council voted at 1.3 for studio l -bedroom
and I stall for 2 bedrooms and beyond. We,re asking to have that be one per
bedroom. Our first recommendation on the study is I per bedroom and 1.5 per unit
for non-student housing. This is out on Cross Hollow Road. There's a balance
between the tenants' experience with parking, open space and amenities. Our sweet
spot is around 1.85 to 1.9 parking stalls per unit. This isn't the exact elevations. This
is one of our other projects up no(h. Lot of open spac€, green space, amenities will
be a weight room, common area, pool, playgrounds, pickieball courts. Rather than
having an asphalt jungle we'd create something for our tenants to have a good
experience. Our request is to change tom 1.3 for studio and I -bedroom to I and
projects that are 100 units or larger. Talked with Jonathan and talked about the 1.3 is
necessary for smaller projects, but ours isn't that project. We wanted to make a
distinguishing number of units to be one per bedroom. we're asking to increase fiom
what the study shows at 42%. Craie: We've had the opportunity to see the study
again. We had prior discussions a month or two ago, the attitudis are to reduce ihe
asphaltjungle, but we want adequate parking. When I looked at the study it's easy to
stmtiry it based on number of units. You can see less parking with more units.
That's a simple analysis. HR: As a developer, rent in Cedar City are lower than SL,
but our hard costs are the same, some aretts even more. pencil these things down to
make sense and put a nice project in Cedar to make it profitable for everyone. We
don't want less parking just to beautifu the city, but less to have more units and a
profitable, long-standing project. Qg4!g: For studio and I -bedroom this would work,
but if it's 2 or more, or all across the board I per bedroom? HR: The vote was for
anything 4 or more 1.3 for a studio and I and I for 2-bedrcoms and beyond. We just
want to change the 1.3 for projects that are bigger than 100 units to 1. Carter: All
we're changing are studios and one-bedroom. HR: Yes. I think it would be good to
put 100 units or more on there. Carter: I agree. @!g: It's an arbinary number, not
amagic number. fulq: The study had one of l12 bedrooms. S: And occupancy
went down from 6l%to 50%. Don: The previous draft of the study reflected this
exact same language, and that number was 100. fulg: The only time this would be
an issue is ifyou had 1OO-unit complex of*udios and one-bedroom you,d be under
parked. That's the only negative scenario. HR: You'll aever have that. Good
developers are looking for the experience ofthe tenants, not how many units they can
put in one area. The groups we're with have over 30,000 high quality units in the
westem United States. JilI: I missed the original meeting. Can you recap what your
project is? HR: This is I I -acres on Cross Hollow Road, Otd Sonel Ranch./Armbrust



property. We have 264 units planned. In the other mectings, r*e had it rezoned to R-

3, but didn't go through in a lot of detail. We'l[ be at Sketch this Thursday. Jill: Will
they be various sizes? S!: Approx. 40% are I -bedroom, 40 % are 2-bedroom, and

20% will be 3-bedroom. That may change. fulg: Is this south of the red cow? IIR:
It's just north ofthe RV park, and we butt up against Diamond Z. Carter: How
many apartment complexes do we have that are more than 100 units? pq: I don't
have an answer to that. Not a whole lot. When you look at things like this in the

ordinance, the change isn'tjust you; this is for others as well. !!: I understand.

The 1.3 was for projects that were 4 units or more. We wanted to have a demarcation

line. Don: I'm comfortable with it. We have the data to back it up. It's written that

the parking cannot be in tandem and not enclosed. That's a big factor in getting

spaies utilized. ,!q!@: Don had wriuen up language for the ordinance change. It

does correspond with what the study showed.

Councilmember Isom opened the public heming-

Laura Henderson: It's good to see lots of green space and amenities !qi: I'm also

"-cit"d "b.rt 
thit I'd like to see more ofthis kind of development that makes sense

and provides good amenities and living space. This will help us to get more

developments like this.

Councilmember Isom closed the public hearing.

Jennie motions for a positive recommendrtiotr for the Ordinence Text

Lendment for Required Parking for Residential Uses; Ray seconds; all in

favor for unanimous vote.



HORROCKS

-ll-

lr \ (i I .}.. F Ij R S

II
MEMORANDUM

To: Jonathan Stathis, P.E., City Engineer
Don Boudreau, Planner
Cedar City

From Aron Bake., P.E.

Honocks Engineers

Date:

Subject:

August ll, 2022

PURPOSE
Cetlar City Ms been appoadrcd by a member of he devdopment community to evaluab he parking rates for the

multihmily zones and iiudent housing zones in Cedar City to see if the number of parking spaces lequitBd.in each

zone is appopriate. Some have mndms tlnt tm mudr parking is required for multi-family as it has been observed

that fhere are'excessive parking spaces remaining, even when he units are fully occupied. Honocks Engineers has

been asked to examine i5 exiJting multi-hmily complexes and gather parking lot occupancy data and.compare it to

the city's pa*ing rate to see if tris rate should be lowered. lt would be irieal to optimize his rate so lhe numb€r of

pa*ini sdaces [quired would accommodate he esidents of $e mulli-family ornplex wihort having too many v&nt
parking spaces lefi unused.

CEDAR CITY PARIIING STANDARDS
Parldng requiremenb in Cedar City fu he RIM zone muhi-hmily residential spaces is 1.3 parfing spaces per

UeOroo-m. Tire city tras asked Hono6a to evaluate his rate as well as evaluate he size ofllre complex to see if larger

complexes require moIe or less parking per bedmom han srnall€r apartnent fuildings.

Er'lsting Parking Rates

. lluhihmily Housing Parting Rate: 1.3 spaces per bedroom

This is he rate hat the city is primarily targeting to evaluate.

. Student HoBing District (SHD) Parting Rab
Cedar City haia few pa*cipaiing apartment mmplexes within the SHD zone. One complex was assigned

to be ounted witrin tris zore and is reported in this study, but since there is only one sample to examine,

there isn't enough relevant data to draw any condusions of the perfomance of parking rates in the SHD

zone.

Deyeloper Proposed Rll{ Zone Pa*ing Rate

A multifamity residential developer, Troy Belliston, applied for an ordinance dlange that he feels will create more

effcient and efieclrve parking ratios wihin the RIM zone, which are:

Cedar City ilulti.Family Residential Parldng Lot Utilization Study

. '1.3 Stalls per Shidio Apartment

o 1.3 Stalls per On+Bedmom Apartment

o 2 Sblls per Two-Bedroom Apattment

o 2.25 Slalls per Three-Bedroom Apartment

555 Souh Blutr street suite #'101 st Geoqe, uT 84770 Telephone (435)98&7888 Fax (435)98S7889

@



August 10, 2022 Page 2

. 2.5 Stalls per Four-Bedmom Apartment
Or
2 Stalls Per Apartnent Unit Regardless of Room Count

STUDY METHODOLOGY
To determine the parking utilization of eadr of tre study locations shown bdow, tte lohl number of parkirg spaces
and the number of ocdpied spaces in eadt lot vuele counled betvueen 9 PM and 11 PM on tvlo separate occasions.
The first counb werB conducled on Wednesday, April 6, 2022, and tre second occunence was counted on Wednesday,
April 13, 2022. These two times rere selecled to captrire a rypical weekday evening whec normal at-home pattems
would be present. Tuo counb nere taken to ensure hat abnormalities in he data would be discovercd if tp rcsults
varied significan0y. Parking lot counts induded in $e study are listed in Table '1. the collected dab is shown in ttle
Appendix.

Aerial images of each of te strdy locations are shown in tre Appendix. Some of study locations conhin n*v buildings
hat he aerial photos do not show.

SURVEY RESULTS
The results of the counted parking locations are shown in his seclion in hree categories; overall average occupancy,
average ocarpancy by size of pa*ing lot, and average ocupancy by housing type. Table I shows he orcrall
sumrnary fo. each of he counted locations. The number of handicap spaces is induded in tle total number of
parking spaces as well as in the number of ocarped spaces. The average occupanry for all of tre counbd parking
locations v{as 55 percent

Table

Table 2, Table 3, and rable 4 show he average omrpanry for small mmplexes (less than 20 unib), miGsize lots
(21 to 79 units), and large lots (greater than 80 units), respectively. When he multihmily complexes are categorized
by size, differences beMreen lhe average occupancy can be identified. Smaller complexes are more fully utilized with

Cedar CW Multi-Family Paking Study



August 10,2022

an average occupancy of 61 percent. Mi+size mmplexes have an average of 57 percent occupancy, and large

complexes have lower rates of average occupancy, an average of 50 percent.

Table 2-AYerage Pafiing Occupancy for Small Compleres (< 20 units)

Table lAver e Parki Occupan for llid-Size Partin -79 units

Parki 0cc for La Com 80 Spacos

Page 3

Table 5 shows he average occupancies for strdent housing and Table 6 shows tle ocalpancy o, any other housing

that is not specifcally sludent housing. Based on he sample of locations used for his study, student housing has an

.r.rag. p.rting o..rpancy of 68 percenl At o$er aparment buildings, the average ocqlpancy was observed to be

+Z percent. From this data, student housing tends to be more densely populated than oher housing, aS many

studenb share rooms. These results also suggest that student housing is more likely to have multiple drivers and

vehides per apartment than in other family housing.

15 3-74/14
t24 s6%t28 ttilo cedar xnolls Drive

74%98Sw Comer ot 200 North and 300 West
59 48%61r. 120 Nonh 3oowen
28 41./a14

Average (xorpaocY 61%

Average
Percent

oc{upied

tlt{Dber of
Pafiry spaces

{umb€. ol
Units

Map
t{lfnbet

162 49.;/.721021south 350 west
9l%991 165 South lt00 west
53'rr5S223tl North 3mWen12

119rA121 East canyon commercial Avenue1l
65rk67 1453$ wen U75 North

Name

Averdge OcorP..tcY SIli

Av€.age
Percent

ocqrpied

!?E3o2620 \onh lr5 weEt
45%8012Ot vJen 1225 North2
399,:3905 920 South 75 Ean
56%3381126 NEComer 1425 Northfield Road
45c/t211801044 {ovi Hills Drive9

Aver{e ocotp cy qX

AYcr€e
Pe.ceot

ocoryied

ttlrnb€I ol
Pa.ting spxes

tlilnh€t ol
Units

MaP
l{umber

Ceclar City Multi-Family Patuing Study

Lots

Table

Name

170 N 4m West

2010

81389 Northfield Road

tfirtrb€ro, xrtrlbcrof
Units rrytiq S?ms

MaP
t{urber

trs

3

Name

lr



At'lgust 10, 2022 Page 4

Table Parling Occupancy for Student Housi Apartments

Table EAvera Parting Occupancl for Othcl Apartncnt!

Table 7 Parki Ratios m for Student Housi

Table 7 and

Table 9 summarize the parking ratios for each location using the aveElge parking lot occupancy and the number of
bedrooms. Tade 7 and

Table 9 summarize the parking ratios br each location using the average parking lot ocflpancy and the number of
units. For the student apartnents, tre average ocaJpied pa*ing ft io, 1.2 spaces per Hroom, is similar to tE
existing requirement for parking, 1 .3 spaces per bedroom. The maximum occunence noted is 1.4 spaces per
bedroom. The average number of spaces per unit for sfudent housing is 3.7. For $e oher apartrenb not designated
as studenl apartmenb, he occupied parking ratio, 0.7 spaces per bedmom, or 1.4 spaces per unit, is approxim;tery
halt of he existing Equirement of L3 spaces per bedroorn.

1021 South 35{ Wen R3.M Married Student Hou5inE
4 lm North il00 West SHD Student llousing 87%
7 165 South 1400 West R3-\4 Student Housing 91%
8 1130Cedar Knolls Drive R3.M Student Housan! 56%
10 SWComerof 200 North and 300 Wen R3.M Student Hou5ing 744,,;

11 120 No(h 3m west R3. M Student Housing 48%

Name Zone GerEral ComPnts/ As$xtrptions

Average Oaaupaocy

Avelage
Peraeot

occupied

Map
Nlxnbet

1 2620 Nonh 175 West cc @%
2 1264 Wen ,r25 No(h R3-M Mix of students and families L5%
5 920 South 75 East R3-3 39%

5 NEComer 1i125 Northfield Road R3.M
Townhome5. Open Parling
Typical famlly assumption- PUD

i6?!

1044 Hova Hills Drive R3-M Sub5idized Unit5 45c),t

t2 354 North 3m west R3.M Mir per manaSement company 58%
13 121 East Canyon Commercial Avenue R3.M Subsidized Unit5 23%
14 1389 Northfield Road R3.M 4L%
19 315 West 1175 North R3.M More FamilieJ per Management Company

Name Ge.E al Cornmeob/ Asstmptior6

Average Occuperry

Zone

48%

Average
Percent

ocorpied

Map
umbea

5a l2-b.dr@n uituI r3 lr,bdr@m
.l4b.dr.s uBl Pr6 :. .nii.!

Ir.rc b.rtEm .p.nftrE) a..i!d.l@
tunts.r.r!mn| n ab.dmG rll
!5i. @rd Fb.d@.

lwcom.,or2mr.nh.nd30.w.n
5ljnir (+b.dMl t.dlD.d66h-

ra*-
c*rd.rr-F-. ,rta

tE

Cedat City Mufti-Family Paking Study

l

9



Cedar City Mufti-Family Patuing Stucly August 10, 2022 Page 5

Table Ratios for Studenl

Table Ratios for Oher

Table I Ratios lor Oher

RESULT COMPARISON TO OTHER CITIES
TaUe 11 shows he parking requiremenb lor multihmily housing in oher cities in Souhem LJtah. The standards

shorvn in the table do not include visitor parking or accessible parking. All of the surounding cities compaEd here

have parking odimnces based on spaces per unit, wih he exception of Enoch city and he student housing

r€quirements in St George.

Table 11 0rdinance

l space per occupan! can be reduced to .75 per

occupant if certain are met*Student Housing

2 spaces per unit
St. George

Multifamily Housing

1.5 spaces per bedroomEnoch Multifamily Housing

i-ad lst
za Ga.r ccb/.qriE hh.

rFG oct.d

Lr.b.dffiffir.rur6ordl'r L*'.d*r

.sr ff'a"t'r**tr'o*o*no

?* c.Fr(cc/.6-i6 hrit
lFE

ETJ

lr. r1.5dmmr ur'B.idrrc lr.b€d@ml

.< Lr.dltlntdlu,dr

P(}bdMr,,.h@)
l,,o - r, o.o*. ".*r

rtlior famrrY du6pr.+ puD

$x lr, n.b.d@m u.hrl
l.lr.hd,6nr llo.b.d,6nr

.rt L h.k'omr:nd. r3 r.aro6r unns

ir-.r.4
zE c*jcmG/b-rd6. .hnil t*oa oatrar.rl..

rriB i-o|?r-/'rrl

Pl2.!.d@n) 
uint.id. ll-5.danl

lE rlb.dlgn ro$hocl

l",o',,o.**'**r'In€rt 
n'r, eu6pioi. ,uD

l*. c.nr r.21 No.Bih.'d . d

d lrrD.arm uirt

.r* l.rl.dlemr d.lrtud'Mrunn3
Md. rn'h6 ,.l r.n{.ad I
c.he.ny I

Land

1,1spaces per unitMultifamily Housing (1 bedroom)

2 spaces per unit
WashinBton

Multifamily Housing (2+ bedrooms)



Cedar Cily Mufti-Family Pa*ing Stucty August 10, 2022 Page 6

Single-family and Two-famiV Housing 2 spaces per unit
Parowan

Multifamily Housing tu determined by PlanninS Commission

'see SL George Municipal Code Sodion 1Gl94

Compared to these sample cities, Cedar City generally has higher parking requiremens than most of he polled

cities. Applying these rates to his same list of 15 apartment complexes is shown in Table 12. The cells shaded in
green and red are calculated minimum required parking spaces accoding to ead respective city. Ile green shaded
cells are values that are less han Cedar City requirements, and the red shaded values are greater than Cedar City
requirements. A conclusion hat can be drawn from Table 12 is that he City of Enoch has higher pa*ing
requiremenb in almost all cases, requiring 1.5 spaces per bedroom.

Comparing Cedar City's parking ratios to other cilies is useful as a test to evaluate where tre city fib in with
sunounding standads. However, some cities wih lower parking standards expect vehicles to pa* on he street.
Furher inquiries with fiese cites would be advisable to examine their overall ordinance performance. For example,
in more urbanized settings sudl as Provo, parking rates are 0.5 spaces per bedmom wih a minimum of2 spaces per
unit. This standard encourages all spaces on tr poperty to be used and relies on oveilofl parking in he street to
make his low rato work.

Hurricane
Multifamily Housing (1 bedroom) 1.5 spaces per unit

Multifamily Housing (2+ bedrooms) 2 spaces per unit



Cedat Cily Mulli-Family Pafing Study Augusl10, 2022 Page 7

>l]

! t : :

* :

33

t 5{

t 3

I !

t

a3 a

E

9

e

E

€
8
I

a

s

E

3
5

Table 12-City Parking Calculation Companson

6

E

E

,
8

R

!ll
9! 9

!ii

!ls
-.i

ili
!! s!l!
l!E
IE:
iig

t-
lEr5tu

l!
E

I
t

E
a

;
5

!



Cedet City Mufti-Family Pa*ing Stucty August 10, 2022 Page I

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
There are some interesting condusions hat have been leamd ftom his sfudy:

o On average, student housing developments have a parking occupancy rate of 68%. The average occupied

parking rato is 1.2 spaces per bedroom. The average parking ratio for space per unil is 3.7. Student

housing is ofien configured so sfudenb share bedrcoms, thus, it is more likely that multiple drivem and

vehides exist per bedroom and per unit than in other family housing.

o Multihmily housing complexes $at are not exdusively sfudent housing have a lower average pa*ing
occupanry of48%. The average pa*ing ralio is .7 spaces per bedroom or 1.4 spaces per unit.

. No parking lots hat were sfudied t\ere observed to be a! or overcpacily. There are some apartnents,

such as Cedar View Aparlmenb (#12), Norhfield Aparfnenb (#14), and Norhfield Village (#'15), $at have

on-street pa*ing that helps with overf,ow conditions if and when over€pacity occuB.

. Smaller mullihmily complexes, induding student housing, ale more fully utilized with an aveftlge occupancy

of 6'l percenl Midsize and large multifamily complexes have lower rates of average occupanry, 57 and 50
percent, respedively.

. Cedar City has higher pa*ing rates than most cities in Southem Utah that were polled for tris study, except
Enoch, who requires 1.5 spaces per bedroom.

Overall, it appears hat he number of parkirE spaces het ar€ required by qlrent par*ing standards in Cedar City
can be reduced to a level that will still povide a high level of seMce to tenants in he multihmily zones. This lr,ould

reduce he space needed for parking while still meeting tre parting needs of the city. lf he city considers reducing
he parking rate for he multifamily zones, mnsiderations to he following are recommended:

. Non-sludenl apartnent comdexes mdd have their rate reduced from 1.3 spaces per bedmom to 1.0

spaces per bedroom or 1.5 spaces per unit to optimize parking while still pro/ding adequate overffow. A
tiered approach may also be mnsidered, as recommended by Mr. Belliston, wih a minimum number of
spaces for one-bedroom apartnenb (1 .3 spaces for one bedroom), and incIeasing with he number of
bedooms (1 space per bedroom).

. The city may want to mnsider a different rate for sfudent aparlment complexes as trey experience a higher
parking lot ocorpanry rate. Table 7 calqllates an optimized rate of l.2 spaces per bedroom and would be

adEuate as a new rate. Ihe SHD zone already requires .75 spaces per ocoipant (or 1.5 spaces per

bedrmm if shrdenb are sharing), whidl is more conservative than the 1.2 spaces per bedmom.



Cedat CW Mufti-Fanily Pa*ing Study August 10,2022 Page I

APPENDIX



Codar Cily Multi-Family Padng Study August 10, 2022 Page 10

Aerial lma

1

1264 W 1225 N Canyon Visw Apartmonts

o_

lllli ll:. 'r,i '

-E-!jj-.

)

.t

s
\

J

N

/1t,t

I ;-
Iii

t.
I

7/

t- €;,'s
la!t

.--,

Lt\ &,
,l

IIEts



Page 11

.iml-

ala
a
o

a
a

E.

a
a

?o
a

a

oo o @

Ii

t

lItIli
I-

1021 South 350 West Driscoll Lane ents

--

170 North {00 West Name Unknoyn

Cedar CiU Multi+anily PaNng Study August 10,2022

l/

xF
I
ITI
---EEEIErEEETEI

E

{I

-.1

i.i

,I-
tFL

)
F':

t
I

I 1 l'if Il

lr l.a 2
a{

I
I

$n
-

'.!E

ll
l*

l.

I

I

I

-
'i



Cedar City Mufti-Family Patuing Study August 10, 2022 Page 12

920 South 75 East Trailslde PUD

NE comsr of 1425 Northfiold Road Cedar Part Townhomog

,/ o ,} Ili €
a

!

:l+--. I l{
:1\ l',

I'ta
1

n

I B-l I 0ei

I

-=-=-

l-

f

i] I
I
!
I
I

-.,;.rj'.r'7..{:*Z.i|

t,

'J'tr,*
B

Ia

-.1

I



Cedar Aty Multi-Family Patuing Study Page 13

165 South 1400 Wesl Thunderbird

1130 Csdar Knolls Drive cadar City Apartmonts Sut Housing

August 10, 2022

{
1

l_
@.

. !.4

t-I
_-8I

I!
..1
tl

-i
-

s

i
il\

n
I

..

I



Cedar City Multi-Family Pa ng Study August 10, 2022 Page 14

10{4 Hovi Hills Drive Libertad

SW comor of 200 North and 300 W0st Gateway ]{orth Apaftmonts

I
1

---/

t

Tf

1E!: -

h

it

,ta
1 {

$
o!

J-J
I

r,

.t
.l
rl

Irl
d



Cedar City Mufti-Family Pa*ing Study August 10, 2022 Page 15

I

120 North 300 West East ents

a'.,
.a

'P!

:)

L-l{ a, ..0 ..

t a. a

354 North 300 Wost Cedar Viow APartnents

a

.E

P

)

a T
I

r
3 EJ]

-Gfi

ffit-r.r-ffi.n-f

-t-'trP*.
, TitsrHht*

1i,.,,,,i

r-i

o

a

I -l_l

J!
t,

a
I

f

,-

.a

J

IIJ

f

J
3

t!

I
I

+r

r'l

r



Ceder Cily Mufti-Family Patuing Study August 10, 2022 Page 16

J

I
I

I

+

121 East Ca Commercial Avsnue Sandstone Apartmsnts (not built in thb aerial)

I

T

!
,1389 Northtield Road Northflold Apartmonts

H

I
,r -. n

t

:i- r -=

Ir

-

S

N

T

\
\

E

-

a



Cedar City Mufti-Family Patuing Study August 10,2022

315 West 1175 North Northtleld Villagc

Page 17

'!- ',!rt' il'
i'\fa

il E



CEDAR CITY ORDINANCE NO.

AI\ ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 ARTICLE V, OF THE
ORDINANCES OF CEDAR CITY, UTAII, RELATED TO REQUIRED PARICNG

FOR DEVELOPMENTS WITH 1OO TJNITS OR MORE

WHEREAS, Cedar City has adopted Chapter 26 of the ordinance of Cedar City, Utah'

and said provisions contain the City's planning and zoning requirernents; and

WEEREAS, Cedar City has the legal authority to adopt ordinances for the benefit of the

City and its citizens; and

WHEREAS, the Cedar City Council desires to update and amend Chapter 26, Article V,

ofthe Cedar City Ordinances entitled "Required Parking"; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of these amendments is to ensure sound land management and

orderly development of the city for developments with 100 units or more; and

WIIEREAS, parking facilities that are designed and located appropriately create and

provide sound and aesthetically pleasing residential neighborhoods and commercial uses; and

WHEREAS, as requted by City ordinance the Cedar City Planning Commission

considered the proposed amendments and gave a positive recornmendation to the proposals; and

TilHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the health, safety,

convenience, order, appqmmce, prosperity, and general welfare ofthe landowners and citizens

of cedar city to amend the ordinance regulating the proper calculation ofrequired parking

spaces in the City.

NOW TffiREFORE BE IT ORDAINED bv the Citv Council of Cedar City, State of
Utah that Chapter 26, Article V of the ordinances ofCedar City, Utah, is hereby amended to

include the below underlined red text and exclude all crossed out text:

SECTION 2GV-2. Required Parking; Residential Uses

(A) One unit oer lot: Two (2) parking spaces for each dwelling unit. Tandem

parking shall be allowed.

@) Two unit dwellins oer lot: Two (2) parking spaces for each unit that contains one or

two bedrooms. Units that contain three bedrooms and above: one and one third (1.30)

parking stalls for each bedroom. Tandem parking shall be allowed.

(c) Three uni dwellinss : Two (2) parking spaces for each unit tllat contains one or two

be&ooms. Units that contain three bedrooms and above: one and one third (1.30) parking

stalls for each be&oom.



@) Four unit dwellinss. or more: One and one third (1.30) parking stalls per bedroom
with the following exceptions:

l. Developments that do not configure in a tandem parking arrangement and are
located in a parking lot that is unenclosed shall provide one (l) parking space per
bedroom for all units containing 2 bedrooms or more. This provision shall not
prohibit the installation of carports which provide a minimum of 9-feet between
any upright supports.

a ents which cons units or more shall vide one
arkin s om sub ect to the rovisions of D .l

Council Vote:

Hartley -
Isom -
Phillips -
Melling -
Riddle -

Dated this _ day of November, 2022

GARTH O. GREEN
MAYOR

lsEALl

ATTEST:

RENON SAVAGE
RECORDER

NOW BE IT FLJRTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of Cedar City, State of Utah
that City staff is authorized to make such non-substantive changes to the format and table of
contents ofChapter 26 Article V as are reasonably necessary to facilitate this amendment.

This ordinance, Cedar City Ordinance No. _, shall become effective
immediately upon passage and publication as required by State Law.



TO:

CEDAR CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEMS - 5
DECISION PAPER

Mayor and City Council

City Attomey

October 26,2022

Chapter 26 Article III - Engineering standards for streets in the RE
zone

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION:

Several weeks ago, the City Council approved engineering standards for streets in the RE zone
which created an exception from requiring master planned arterial and collector streets from
being fully improved with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. This ordinance amendment simply lists
those engineering standards in the City's ordinance.

Staffhave no objections to the proposed changes. The Planning Commission reviewed the
proposed ordinance and gave the revision a positive recommendation (see the attached minutes).

Please consider approving the ordinance revision for Chapter 26 Article Itr.



L CITYITEMS
I. PIiBLIC}IEARING

Ordinance Text Amendment - Chapter 26, Section III-9-(I)-4
Stathis
regarding Steets wittrin the RE Zone
(Recommendation)

Jonathan

ber lsom : This is to cover the engineering standard changes that were
approved. Jonathen: Just some clean-up work. The City Council approved some
changes, but the language was not corresponding in the ordinance. This is to make
sure it's clear that curb/gutter/sidewalk is required on Mp roads and RE estates unless
it's allowed in specific engineering standards. There are certain cases where the
borrow ditches can be used rather than c/g/s in the RE zones on Mp roads. We
wanted to make sue it's clear that the ordinance corresponds with the engineering
standard.

Councilmember Isom opened the public hearing; no comments vere made; the public
hearing was closed.

Ray motions for e positive recommendation for the Ordinance Text Amendment
for Streets within the RE Zone; Jennie secondsl all ir favor for unanimous vote,



CEDAR CITY ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINA}ICE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 ARTICLE III OF TIIE ORDINANCE OF

CEDAR CITY, UTAII, RELATED TO STREETS WITHIN TI{E
R-E RESIDENTIAL ESTATE ZONE.

WIIEREAS, Cedar City has adopted Chapter 26 of the ordinance of Cedar City' Utah,

and said provisions regarding the City's Planning and Zoning; and

WHEREAS, Cedar City has the legal authority to adopt ordinances for the benefit of the

City and its citizens; and

WIIEREAS, the Cedar city council desires to update and amend chapter 26, Article III,

of the Cedar City Ordinances entitled'Zones"; and

WHf,REAS, the purpose of the ordinance revision is to identifu the engineering

standards that allow exceptions in the R-E Residential Estate Zone from requiring master

planned arterial and collectors streets from being fully improved with curb, gutter, and sidewalk;

and

WIIEREAS, as required by City ordinance, the Cedar City Planning Commission

considered the proposed amendments and gave a positive recommendation to the proposals; and

WIIEREAS, the city council finds that it is in the best interests of the health, safety,

convenience, order, appeamnce, prosperity, and general welfare ofthe landowners and citizens

of Cedar City to amend the ordinance to clarifu the engineering standards that allow exceptions

in the R-E Residential Estate Zone from requiring master planned arterial and collectors streets

from being fully improved with curb, gutter, and sidewalk.

NowTIIEREFoREBEIToRDAINEDbytheCityCouncilofCedarCity,Stateof
Utah that Chapter 26 Article III of the ordinance of Cedar City, Utah, is hereby amended to

include the below underlined red text and exclude all crossed out text:

SECTION 2filll-g. R-E Residential Estate Zone.

(A) Obiectives and cheracteristics: The objective in establishing the R-E Residential Estate

Zon" ir to 
"*r.ugS 

me creation and maintenance of a residential environment within an area

which is characterized by large lots with minimal lot densities (maxirnum 2 lots per acre) on

which single family dwellings are situated, sunounded by settings in which the pre-development

natural character ofthe landscape is retained. Native plant species, wildlife habitats' low water

consumptive landscapes, minimum vehicular traffic, private lanes connected to public streets,

featured or gated entries, building products produced from natural materials, and quiet residential

conditions are also characteristic of this zone. While much of this zone is currently devoted to

open land uses, it is intended that the land shall be developed into residential uses as the needs

arise having characteristics as herein above set forth. The minimum area for a R-E Zone shall be

ten (10) acres. Representative ofthe uses within the R-E Zone are one family dwellings,



Amended by ordinance number 012$'12-l and 0919-12

(B) Permitted Uses: The following uses shall be permitted in the R-E Residential Zone:
(l ) One-family dwellings and accessory buildings and structures; including guest houses
(not to exceed 1200 square feet) and subject to the setback requiremens of one-family
dwellings, private garage and./or barn;

(2) Keeping of animals and fowl, as an accessory use to a single-family dwelling,
limited to the following:

a. Two large animals per lot and one additional large animal for each 10,000
square feet over I acre. Large animals may include horses, cattle, goats, sheep or
other animals judged by the Planning Commission to be compatible with this
zone; and

b. Not more than 20 poultry or rabbits shall be kept on any lot;

(3) Planned Unit Developmants approved per this ordinance;

(4) Residential facility for persons with a disability, not to exceed four (4) residents (see
Article XVI);

(5) Public and private parks, playgrounds, green ways, trails, and open space;

(6) hblic and private golf cources;

(7) hrblic and privat€ r€creation centers;

(8) Solar Power Generation, Central.

(9) Intemal Acc€ssory Dwelling Units which have a separate address;

(10) External Accessory Dwelling Units with a separate address which are no greater
than l20O square feet, encompass no more than 2 bedrooms, and do not exceed
one story (16 feet). Units must be located behind the primary dwelling, meet the
setbacks of the primary dwelling (not an accessory building) and match the
primary dwelling in color and roofdesign. Parking to the rear ofthe primary
dwelling shall be served by a &iveway that is a minimum of l2-feet wide.
Parking shall be located behind the front setback. All detached units shall meet

caretaker's cottages (not to exceed one per lot), parks and playgrounds. Boarding and lodging
houses, two family dwellings, triplexes, apartment houses and other multiple dwellings
representative of higher density residential areas are strictly prohibited in this zone. Commercial
and industrial uses are strictly prohibited unless otherwise designated or as listed below. ln order
to accomplish the objectives and purpose of this ordinance, and to promote the characteristics of
this zone the following precise regulations shall apply to the R-E (Residential Estate) Zone:



the provisions ofthe cunently adopted Building and Fire Codes. Existing guest

houses may be converted to an Extemal Accessory Unit subject to the criteria
above.

Amended by ordinance number 0E27-0&2' 0919-12, md 0713-2L8

(C) Conditional Uses: See Section 26-XI-5.

Amended by ordinance number 08274&2

(D) Area Reo irements : Same as R-l Residential Zone.

Amended by ordinance number 012912-l

@) Width Reoulrementr: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

Amended by ordinance number 012$12-l

(F)@:

(l) Side Setback: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

(2) Front Setbacks: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

(3) Rear Setbacks: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

(4) Solar Power Generation. cental: structues and panels shall be setback 20' minimum

from residential neighboring properties.

Amended by ordinance number 0125'lLl end 09M2

(G) Buildins lleiqht Reouirements: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

Amended by ordinance number 012$12'l

Qf) Buildins Size Requirementr: Same as R-l Residential Zone.

Amended by ordinance number 012*12'l

(r)S@:
(l) All Special Provisions in R-l Residential Zone.

(2) Variations fiom development standards ofother residential zones may be permitted

by the City Council as part ofthe approval of this zone. Variations shall not include

changes in the permitted uses allowed except to the extent set forth herein.



(3) The minimum area required for a R-E Residential Estate Zone is ten ( l0) acres.

(4) All sheets within a Residential Estate zone shall meet with City Engineering
Standards. Sheets adjacent to a Residential Estate zone and master planned arterial and
collectors shall be fully improved with curb, gutter and sidewalk in accordance with City
Engineer Standards !'\c!-rrt as allorrcd in Dr,.taiis R-lB . R4E. and R4F in the Ciw
Enqineering Standards

(5) The Residential Estate zone is desiped to be in areas where the gorerally uniform
slope is 57o or less and therefore, would not require curb, gufter and sidewalks along
public steets. Areas with slopes greater than 5% will be perrnitted with fully improved
streets (curb, gutter and sidewalk) or as a P.U.D. Roadside borrow ditches may be
permitted in areas exceeding a 5% slope by the City Engineer ifcalculations shouring
riprap channel stabilization can be achieved and adequate &ainage capacity are provided
within the Right of Way, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer within the RE Zone.
Road slopes exceeding 5% for bonow ditches will require an erosion conhol plan with
construction drawings to the satisfaction ofthe City Engineer. Public streets shall have a
minimum ofone hard-surfaced sidewalk or footpath per steet.

(6) Areas used for animals shall be maintained so as to conform with health, sanitation,
water and drainage requirernents.

(7) Solar Power Generation, Cenral. Shall have a minimum ofone hundred (100)
cOntiguouS acres.

Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 0919-12 and 0525-224.

(J) Suoolementarv Reeulations: See Article IV, Supplementary Regulations to All Zones

NOW BE IT FLJRTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of Cedar City, State of Utah thar
City staffis authorized to make such non-substantive changes to the format and table of contents
of Chapter 26 Article III as are reasonably necessary to facilitate this amendment.

This ordinance, Cedar City Ordinance No. shall become effective
immediately upon passage and publication as required by State Law.

Council Vote:
Hartley -
Isom -
Phillips -
Melling -
Riddle -



Dated this _ day ofNovember, 2022

GARTH O. GREEN
MAYOR

lsEALl

ATTEST:

RENON SAVAGE
RECORDER



*a
City Council Members,

Here's an explanation for my agenda item: Consider recommendations for Economic Development Rural
Communities Opportunity Grant Application. - Dalny Stewart

Rural Community Opportunity Grant
The legislature approved a program called the Rural Community Opportunity Grant, which is administered by
the Governor's Office ofEconomic Opportunity through the Center for Rural Development. For the past
couple ofyears. these grants were available for economic development ONLY through the state's 25 rural
counties. Now, eligible rural communities are encouraged to apply for the Rural Communities Opportunity
Grant (RCOG). Recommendations must be approved by a community's economic opportunity board;
communities that do not have an economic opportunity board may utilize their planning commission as the
economic opportunity board. (Iron County has an economic opportunity board, cedar city does not. The
planning commission can act as the economic opportunity board, which can give recommendation to the
community legislative body.

Eligible rural communities include:
Counties ofthe third, founh, fifth, and sixth class (We are a county ofthe third class)
Cities, towns, and metro townships located within those counties (We are a city ofthe third class located in a
county ofthe third class)
Municipalities with a population of 10,000 or less in counties ofthe second class

Competitive Application
The RCOG is competitive and requires a funding match based on the community's population (we need to
have a 40% match because ofour population). Applications are scored based on their quality, proposed
budget, economic development projects and activities descriptions, and the purposes, goals, and measurable
outcomes related to improving the community's overall economy. Applicants are required to justiry the
economic development need for the grant and the amount of funding requested.

Rural Communities Opportunity Grant Application Dat€s:
Opens: Oct. 17, 2022
Closes: Nov. 18. 2022

Following is more detailed PDF in case you a-re interested. Please let me know ifyou have any questions

The RCOG empowers rural communities to take responsibility for economic development planning, projects,
and activities, and to manage their unique opportunities. The grant addresses the economic development needs
of rural communities, which include:
Business recruitment, development, and expansion
Workforce training and development
Infrastructure and capital facilities improvements for business development



lntroduction
state of utah code 63N-4-802 establishes the Rural opportunity program. The Utah Govemor's
Office of Economic Opportunity (Go Utah), through the Center for Rural Development (CRD),
administers the Rural Opportunity Program. The Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee, as created in
Section 63N-4-804, oversees the funding opportunities. The Rural Communities Opportunity Grant is
one of the ofierings of the program.

Rural Communities Opportunity Grant
For this grant, a "rural community" means a rural county or municipality as defined in Section
63N4-801. Rural communities eligible for the Rural Communities Opportunity Grant (RCOG) include
counties of the third, fourth, fifth, and sixth class; cities, towns, and metro townships located in
counties of the third, fourth, Iifth, and sixth class; and municipalities with a population of 10,000 or less
in counties of the second class (see Attachment A).

Granl funding is competitive and requires matching funds from the rural community. Grant funds from
the RcoG may exceed the $200,000 distributed to counties under the Rural county crant (RCG), up
to an overall amount not to exceed $800,000 per state fiscal year. A municipality, city, town, or metro
township may receive up to $600,000.

QUALIFYING REQUIREMENTS
1 . A rural county must form and have a functioning county Economic opportunity Advisory Board

(CEO Board). Arural municipality must have a functioning planning and zoning commission or
a duly organized municipal economic opportunity advisory board or commission that will act
under the same advisory requirements as a CEO Board. (see Attachment B).

2. Aformal application must be submitted by the community legislative body through the
Govemor's Ofiice of Economic Opportunity (GO Utah).

3. The application must include a description of anticipated economic development projects and
activities approved by the legislative body, based upon recommendations ofthe cEo Board, or
for a municipality, the planning and zoning commission or a duly organized municipal economic
opportunity advisory board or commission to include:

a. Scope of work
b. Project and activities budget
c. Timeline
d. Deliverables and outcomes

RURAL OPPORTUN'W PROGRAM

GRANT PURPOSE
The RCOG empowers rural communities to take responsibility for economic development planning,
projects, and activities, and to manage their unique opportunities. The grant addresses the economic
development needs of rural communities, which needs may include:

. Business recruitment, development, and expansion
o Workforce training and development
e lnfrastructure and capital facilities improvements for business development



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

4. The applying community must demonstrate a funding match, which may be provided by any
combination of:

o A community reinvestment agency
o Redevelopment agency
o Community development and renewal agency
o Private-sectorentity
o Nonprofit entity
. Federal matching grant
. County or municipality general fund match

And that total:
. 10% match for a county of the sixth class
o 20% match for a county of the fifth class
o 30% match for a county of the fourlh class
o 40% match for a county of the third dass

or, for a municipality in any rural county classification - including within the second class -that total:
o 10% match for a town
. 20% match for a municipality of the fifth class
. 30% match for a municipality of the fourth class
. 40% match for a municipality of the third class

5. The applying community must veriry compliance with the reporting requirements of
the Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee and verification of reporting requirements
for all previous years the community has received a grant.

APPLICATION
A community may apply for the RCOG during a designated time period in a fiscal year. lf the applicant
is a county, it is encouraged to design new economic development projects and activities, and budget
grant funding based on the economic development needs of the county, including the needs of cities
and towns within its boundaries; or, if the applicant is a rural municipality, it will be encouraged to
design new economic development projects and activities, and budget grant funding based on its
economic development needs. The basic elements of an RCOG application can be found in
Attachment E.

An online portal application will be open to qualified rural communities. The RcoG is competitive
and applications are scored based on the quality of the application, the proposed budget, the
economic development projects and activities descriptions, and the purposes, goals, and
measurable outcomes related to improving the overall community economy. Applicants are required
to justify the economic development need for the grant and the dollar amount requested.

The application review time frame will take into account verification of a county's compliance with
the reporting requirements of the Rural county Grant (RCG), which is due on or before sept. 1 of
each year. Rural county applicants who do not comply with the Rural County Grant reporting
requirements are not eligible to apply for the RCoG. A rural municipality will be eligible to apply for
the RCOG only upon agreement to annual reporting requirements and the fulfillment of annual



RURAL OPPORTUNIry PROGRAM

reporting through the term years of a contracted grant agreement.

Applications will be reviewed and scored by the Go Utah Center for Rural Development and the
Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee (for information regarding the Advisory Committee, see
Aftachment Dl. Limited funds and the number of quality applications may factor into the overall
number of grants awarded and the dollar amounts allocated. Due to these limitations, an applicant
may:

1. Receive a full award of the grant funds requested
2. Be asked to accept a lower funding amount than is requested, and adjust its proposed plan

accordingly, or
3. Not be awarded a grant. (The application alone does not guarantee funding.)

Prioritization
The Advisory Committee may prioritize applications that demonstrate any combination of the following

'L The community has or is actively pursuing the creation of an efiective strategic economic
development plan

2. Consistency with local economic development priorities
3. Economic need
4. Utilization of local flnancial resources in combination with a grant
5. Evidence that the grant will help createjobs
6. Evidence that there will be a positive retum on investment

HOW TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION
An RCOG application may be accessed by visiting business.utah.oov/rural. Open the lnitiatives tab
and select the Center for Rural Development. ln the Rural Communities Opportunity Grant tab open
the link titled FY 2022 Rural Communities Opportunity crant Application. All instructions to
successfully apply for the grant will be found in the Rural Communities Opportunity crant tab and will
be included within the application.

CONTRACTS AND TERMS
When the application is approved, the State of Utah and the applying rural community will enter into a
contract for the RCOG. The contract terms are set for two years from the time of approval. For
example, if approval is given on Nov. 1, 2022, the term of the grant will be from Nov. 1 , 2022 to Nov.
1,2024. Al projects and activities under the grant must be completed within the 24-month period of
the contract. No community may have more than one RCOG contract open at a time. A community
must complete the projects and activities of an initial grant, and meet all reporting requirements
before applying for another grant.

Because the RCOG is subject to competitive review against other rural community applications and
because applications will require significant planning and budgeting, amending an awarded contract
to altogether difierent projects or activities is highly discouraged. An attempt to amend a contract and
change a project or activity design once a contract has been made will require an appeal to and
review by the staff of the Go Utah Center for Rural Development and the Rural Opportunity Advisory
Committee. Final approval of a contract amendment will ultimately be given at the discretion of the



RURAL OPPORTUNIry PROGRAM

Go Utah Executive Director. ln the event of hardship or other unforeseen economic circumstances,
an extension to a contract beyond the 24-month period of this grant may be requested by appeal to
the Rural opportunity Advisory committee, with final approval given by the Go Utah executive
director.

GRANT FUND DISTRIBUTION
Grant funds under the RCoG will be distributed to each qualified rural community after the
application approval. Funds will be distributed on a 90/10 basis, meaning 90% of grant funds will
be delivered upon application approval, and a contract between the community and the State of
utah has been entered into. The remaining l0% of funds will be delivered upon satisfactory
evidence of completion of economic development projects and activities as proposed by the
applicant and recorded in the grant contract.

An online portal will be available to request the final reimbursement of the remaining .10% of grant
funds. The Go Utah compliance team will identiry key benchmarks from a contract to determine
evidence of c.ompletion of economic development projects and activities. The key elements to
determine benchmarks will come ftom the applicant's submitted scope of work, budget, timeline,
deliverables, and outcomes as recorded in the grant contract, and annual reporting. Proof of grant fund
and matching fund expenditure will be required.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Each cEo board within a county, a planning and zoning commission, or a duly organized municipal
economic opportunity advisory board or commission in the case of a municipality shall assist and
advise the community legislative body on preparing reporting requirements for grant money received
under the program, and as required by the Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee (see Attachment C).



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Attachment A
Oualiried Rural Communities
Rural Counties in the State of Utah of the third, fourth, fifth, or sixth class that have created and have
an active County Economic OpportunityAdvisory Board (CEO Board); or, a city, town, or metro
township located within the boundaries of a rural county; or, a municipality with a population of 10,000
or less in a county of the second class with an aclive planning and zoning @mmission or a duly
organized municipal economic opportunity advisory board or commission are eligible to apply for the
Rural Communities Opportunity Grant (RCOG). Rural Counties, by classification (State Code
17-50-50'l ), are:
Counties of the Third Class (Population of 40,000 or more, but less than 175,000):

o Box Elder County
o Cache County
. lron County
o Summit County
. Tooele County

Counties of the Fourth Class (Population of 1'l ,000 or more, but less than 40,000):
o Carbon County
. Duchesne County
o Juab County
o Millard County
o Morgan County
o San Juan County
o Sanpete County
o Sevier County
r Uintah County
o Wasatch County

Counties of the Fifth Class (Population of 4,000 or more, but less than 11,000):
o Beaver County
o Emery County
o Garlield County
o Grand County
o Kane County

Counties of the Sixth Class (Population less than 4,000):
o Daggett County
. Piute County
o Rich County
o Wayne County

Qualified rural municipalities (incorporated municipalities within a county of the third, fourth, fifih, or
sixth class) by classification (State code 10-2-301), are:

o A municipality with a population of 30,000 or more but less than 65,000 is a city of the third
class

o A municipality with a population of 10,000 or more but less than 30,000 is a city of the fourth
class



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

. A municipality with a population of 1,000 or more but less than 1O,OOO is a city of the fifth
class

. A municipality with a population under 1,000 is a town
Qualified incrrporated municipalities in a county of the second class with populations of less than
10,000 are:

o A municipality with a population of 1 ,000 or more but less than 10,000 is a city of the fiflh
class

o A municipality with a population under 1,000 is a town

Cities/Town with populations less than 10,000 in Counties of the Second Class (2022)
Utah County: Weber County:

o Benjamin . Farr West
o Cedar Fort o Harrisville
r Elk Ridge o Hooper
o Genola o Huntsville
o Goshen o Marriott-Slaterville
o Salem o Plain City
e Vineyard o Riverdale
r Woodland Hills o Uintah

Davis County: o Washington Terrace
o Fruit Heights Washington County:
o South Weber o Apple Valley
o Sunset City o Hilldale
. West Bountiful o lvins

r LaVerkin

o Leeds
o New Harmony
o Rockville
o Santa Clara
o SPringdale
o Toquerville
o Virgin



Aftachment B
Countv Economic Opportunitv Advisorv Board (CEO Boardl
"CEO board" means a County Economic Opportunity Advisory Board as described in Utah Code
Section 63N-4-803.

'Note: For a municipality to qualify for a Rural Communities Oppoftunity Grant it must have a
functioning planning and zoning commission, or a duly organized municipal economic oppoiunity
advisory board or commission, that will act under the same advisory requirements as a CEO
Board.

Each rural county that seeks to obtain a Rural Communities Opportunity Grant shall create a CEO
board composed of at least the following members appointed by the county legislative body:

o A county representative
o A representative of a municipality in the county
o A workforce development representative
. A private-sector represenlative
o a member of the public who lives in the county

The county legistative body may also appoint additional members with experience or expertise in

economic development matters. ln appointing members of the CEO board, the county legislative
body may consider gender and socioeconomic diversity.

Each CEO board shall assist and advise the county legislative body on:
1. Applying for a Rural Communities Opportunity Grant
2. What projects should be funded by grant money provided to a rural county under the program

3. Preparing reporting requiremenls for grant money received by a rural county under the program

CEO Boards are subject to the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act (524- 101-104,201-210,
301-304), and are expected to abide by ethics in governance, and conflict of interest practices.

RUR,AL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Appointment and Terms of CEO Board Members
1. Appointment and Terms:

a. The county legislative body shall appoint each new member or reappointed member to a
four-year term. lt is encouraged that an appointed member of the CEO Board is limited
to serving two (2) consecutive terms.

b. The county legislalive body shall, at the time of appointment or reappointment, adjust the
length of terms to ensure that the terms of advisory committee members appointed by
the county legislative body are staggered so that approximately half ofthe appointed
advisory committee members are appointed every two years.

2. The CEO Board shall elect a chair ofthe advisory board. lt is encouraged that a CEO Board
Chair serves for no more than two (2) consecutive years.

3. The CEO Board shall elect annually a vice chair from the advisory board's members.
4. When a vacancy occurs in the membership for any reason, the county legislative body shall

appoint the replacement for the unexpired term.



RURAL OPPORTU NITY PROGRAM

5. A majority of the CEO Board constitutes a quorum for the purpose of conducting advisory board
business and the action of a ma.iority of a quorum c-nstitutes the action of the advisory
committee.



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Attachment C
Rural Communities Oooortunity Grant Reoorting Requirements
Reouired bv the Rural Oooortunitv Advisory Committee
On or before Sept,1 of each year, a community that has received a grant under this program in the
previous 12 months shall provide a written report to the Advisory Committee that describes:

1. The amount of grant money the community has received
2. How grant money has been distributed by the community, including

a. Which companies or entities have utilized grant money
b. How much grant money each company or entity has received
c. How each company or entity has used the money

3. An evaluation of the effectiveness of awarded grants in improving economic development in
the community, including

a. The number ofjobs created
b. lnftastructure that has been created
c. Capital improvements in the community
d. How much matching money has been utilized by the community and what entities or

sources have provided the matching money; and
e. Any other reporting, auditing, or post-performance requirements established by the

Center for Rural Development in collaboration with the Advisory Committee.



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Rural Communities Opportunity Grant (RCOG)
Grant Oversight
The grant program shall be overseen by the Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee and administered
by the Center for Rural Development. ln overseeing the grant program, the Advisory Committee shall
advise and make recommendations to the ofiice regarding the awarding of grants. TheAdvisory
Committee shall recommend the awarding of grants to rural communities to address the economic
development needs, which needs may include:

o Business recruitment, development, and expansion
o WorKorce training and development
o lnfrastructure, industrial building development, and capital facilities improvements for business

development

Rules and Reporting Criteria
The Advisory Committee shall collaborate with the Center for Rural Development to make rules
establishing the eligibility and reporting criteria for the rural communities to receive grant money,
including:

o The form and process for a community to submit an application
o The method of scoring and prioritizing grant program applications from rural communities
. The reporting, auditing, and post-performance requirements for a rural community that

receives grant money
o Any deadlines that shall be met by a rural community when applying for a grant

Application Review, Scoring, and Fund Distribution
ln determining the award of grant money under RCOG: the Advisory Committee may not
recommend the awarding of more than $600,000 annually to a rural community. The Advisory
Committee may prioritize applications that demonstrate any combination of the following:

1. The community has or is actively pursuing the creation of an efiective strategic economic
development plan

2. Consistency with local economic development priorities

3. Economic need
4. Utilization of local financial resources in combination with a grant
5. Evidence that the grant will help create iobs
6. Evidence that there will be a positive retum on investment

Additionally, the Advisory Committee will verify that an applying community:
7. Has complied with the reporting requirements required by the Advisory Committee
8. The reporting requirements for all previous years that the community has received a grant

After reviewing the recommendations of the Advisory Committee, the executive director of Go Utah
shall award grants to rural communities in accordance with the provisions of the state statute and
goveming rules.

Attachment D

Resoonsibilities of the Rural Ooportunihr Advisory Committee
'Advisory Committee" means the Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee created in Section 63N4-804.



Attachment E
Basic Elements of the Rural Communities Oooortunity Grant Aoolication

Organizational lnformation
1 . Date submitted
2. Name of applying community
3. Full mailing address and telephone number of applying community
4. Tax lD Name of FiscalAgent
5. Key organizational contacts
6. Email addresses and telephone numbers of responsible contacts
7. Minutes from the legislative body council meeting detailing the official establishment of a CEO

Board

8. List of CEO Board members, including names, titles (chair, vice chair, etc.), organizations each
member represents, and contact information

9. Amount of grant funding request for up to 9600,000

Supporting Documentation
'1. Letter of support from the County Economic Opportunity Advisory Board (CEO), planning and

zoning commission, or a duly organized municipal economic opportunity advisory board or
commission if the applicant is a municipality

2. The entity's Wg form, or the applicant's State of Utah vendor number if the applicant is cunently
a state vendor

3' The applying community must provide verification of compliance with the reporting requirements
of the Rural Opportunity Advisory Committee, and

4. Verification of reporting reguirements for all previous years the community has received a grant

Scope of Work
To be written into the appropriate field in the application:

1 . A detailed description of what the proposed Rural Communities Opportunity Grant projects and
activities are, such as:

a. What type of work will be completed
b. A description of how projects and activities will be completed
c. A description of the economic development goals and benchmarks of the projects and

activities

Budget
To be written into the appropriate field in the application, and spreadsheet to be provided:

1. Explain the funding requirements of the proiect
2. lnclude calculated project bids
3. Provide estimated cost to administer the grant
4. Submit a proposed budget in spreadsheet format

RURAL OPPORTUNIry PROGRAM



RURAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Timeline
To be written into the appropriate field in the application, and spreadsheet to be provided:

1. Explain the timeline for completion of projects and activities including important dates, goals,
benchmarks, etc.

2. Submit a proposed timeline in spreadsheet format

Deliverables and Outcomes
To be written into the appropriate field in the application:

1 . What will the completed economic development projects and activities look like? For example,
a. What populatlons or industry sectors will the project afiect?
b. \A/ill business opportunities be enhanced by this project?
c. How many projected new.lobs will be realized as a result of this project?

2. Show metrics of project success (e.9., how it will be measured, tracked, and recorded against
goals and benchmarks), and how the proiect will afiect:

a. Business recruitrnent, development, and expansion
b. WorKorce training and development
c. lnfrastructure and capital facilities improvemenls for business development



To:

From:

Council Meeting Date:

Subject:

Discussion:

CEDAR CITY
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
STAFF INFORMATION SHEET

-l

Mayor and City Council

Jonathan Stathis

November 2, 2022

Consider bids for the Airport Road/Kitty Hawk Drive TraIIic
Signal.

This project involves installing traffic signal lights at the
intersection of Airport Road and Kitty Hawk Drive. This project
also includes installing pedeskian crossings signals, LED lighting,
lane striping, and pedestrian ramps.

Local contractors and suppliers were notified ofthis project via
email, advertisement in the Spectrum newspaper, and on the City's
website. The bid documents were requested by 8 contractors and 4

plan rooms. Cedar City received three (3) bids for the project. The

following table shows a summary of the bids that were received

Bid Summary
ort Hawk Dr. Traffic S al

If this bid is awarded it would be on the condition that the

Contractor provide the required executed bonding, insurance

documents, immigration status verification, and that the Mayor be

authorized to sign the agreement with the Contractor.

The Airport/Kitty Hawk Traffrc Sigral project came in under

budget. The City is responsible for procuring the steel and signal
equipment through UDOT and SSCO.

The following table provides a summary ofthe proposed budget
for this project:

Bid AmountName of Contractor

$197 ,23r.32Cache Valley Electric

s232,144.40KV Electric

$261,977.35RC Hunt Electric

I



Airport Road & Kitty Harvk Drive Traflic Signal Project
Project Funding

(Account #10-79-732)

Fundins -
Capital lmprovement Fund - Acct. #10-79-732

Expenses -
Constnrction Contract
Signal Equipment Materials Estimate
Engineering
Materials Testing (0.5% of construction)

Totals -

Fundine Exoenses Balance

$350,000

($ 197,231)
($96,l oo)
($25,900)

($e86)

$3s0,000 ($320,217) $29,7E3

2



To:

From:

Council Meeting Date:

Subject:

Discussion:

CEDAR CITY
CITY COI]NCIL AGENDA ITEM tr
STAFF INFORMATION SHEET

Mayor and City Council

Jonathan Stathis

November 2, 2022

Consider bids for the North Tank Re-coating project.

This project involves re-coating the interior of the North Tank. The
North Tank is the tank that is located above the Golf Course that is
painted in Canyon View High School colors. Over the years, the
coating has come offand a new coating needs to be applied in
order to protect the steel structure ofthe tank and preserve the life
ofthe tank.

The bids for this project have not been received yet. The bids will
be presented at the Action meeting.



CEDAR CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM- ?

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

Mayor and City Council

Tyler Romeril

Octobet 27 ,2022

RAP tax Questiornaire

DISCUSSION:

cedar city ordinance chapter 39J-? outlines the RAp rax application questions and
fonnat. The Arts Board of RAP Tax would like to ask a few additional questions to help them
determine where these funds should go.

The additional questions are:

o The number ofpaid employees the Appticant has,
o The number ofvolunteers the Applicant uses,
o The number of fiscal year performances/events/activities the Applicant operates,
o The number of attendees and participants that attend these

performances/events/activities, and
o The percentage ofthe Applicant's income that the requested RAp Tax amount

represents.

Please consider amending the RAP tax ordinance to allow additional questions to be
asked in the application so the Arts Board can make more informed decisions ofwhere these
funds should be allocated to.



CEDAR CITY ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE ORDINATICE OF CEDAR
CITY, UTAII, RELATED TO RECREATION ARTS AIID PARKS (RAP) TAX

REGULATIONS.

WIIEREAS, Cedar City has adopted Chapter 39 of the ordinance of Cedar City, Utah,

and said provisions contain specific RAP tax regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Cedar City Council considered the proposed RAP tax amendments and

found that the amendments are reasonably necessary, and in harmony with the objectives and

purposes of Cedar City's RAP tax regulations; and

WHEREAS, the City Council after holding a public meeting to consider the proposed

RAP tax amendments finds the proposed amendments further the City's RAP tax regulations of
establishing and maintaining sound, stable, and desirable recreation, parks and art development

within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the health, safety, and

general welfare of the citizens ofCedar City to allow additional questions to be asked in the RAP

Tax application to help determine where these RAP Tax firnds are to be allocated.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Cedar City, State of
Utah that Chapter 39, ofthe ordinance ofCedar City, Utah, is hereby amended to include the

below underlined red text and exclude all crossed out text:

CHAPTER39

CEDAR CITY FUNDING REQI,JEST ORDINAI\CE

ARTICLE I

RECREATION, ARTS, ANiD PARKS
LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX

Sections:

39-I-l
39-t-2
39-I-3
39-t4
39-I-5
39-t-6
39-t-7
39-I-8
39-I-9

Purpose
Statutory Authority
Definitions
Advisory Board
Use of Funds, and Certain Application Restrictions
Allocations
Application Inforrnation and Format
Agreements and disbursement of RAP tax funds
Unallocated funds



SECTION 39-I-7 Appllcetlon Informetion end Format

All applications for RAP tax fimds shall contain the following infonnation:

Applicant's lnformation:

l. Applieea*s name;

2. fuplieeath mailing address;

3. r{pplieanth physical address;

4. Applieoath phone number;

S. A,ppli€Gfh email address;

0=-----*eelieaa++***umUer;

7. Number ofpaid employees:

8. Number of r olunteers;

9.

10.

7ll.

8 t2-

9 13.

{e 14.

For an Arts applicant, the numhr offiscal year performances/events/
activities;

For an Arts applicant, the number of attendees and participants that
attended performances/events/activities identified in question 9:

Proof of applicant's non-profit status;

An attacbment showing the applicmt's detailed financial statement for the
last year, iacluding:

A. Sources of income;

B. Amormts of income;

C. Types ofexpenses; and

D. Amounts of expenses;

Proposed qualifring expenses to be paid with the RAP tal( money;

The amount ofRAP tax revenue the applicant is requesting;



15. Percentage ofthe Appticant's income that the requested RAP tax

represents _7o:

{* 16. A detailed statement describing what the RAP tax money will be used to
pay for, including, if applicable, bids for proposed improvements;

{2 I 1. If the applicant has received RAP tax money within the past three (3)

years, an accounting showing how the prior RAP tax appropriations have

been spent, and

*3 I 8. Any other information that is reasonably related to determining where the

RAP tax money should be spent and is requested by the board.

The following is a sample of the application to be used for funding requests. It is

illustrative only and may from time to time be altered by the Mayor, City Council, or City Staff
as long as it requires the information stated above:

RAP TAX FLNDING APPLICATION
NOTICE TOAPPLICANT:

The information provided on this application constitutes a request to receive frrnding from the

RAP tax revenues. Please complete the application in its entirety. If more space is necessary,

please attach additiooal information to the form and reference the attachment in the appropriate

section. Applications received after the due date shall be rejected.

All information on this application must be, to the best ofyour knowledge, tnre and accurate.

Making a false statement on this form is a criminal act in violation of Title 76, chapter 8, section

5M, Utah Code Annotated 1953 as amended. In addition to criminal puuishment, any

application containing false or misleading information will be rejected.

Choose which RAP tax fund the applicant is applying for:

futs

Arts Preservation and Replacement

Parks and Recreation

Parks and Recreation Preservation and Replacement

l. Applicant's name:

Applicant's mailing add,ress:

Applicant's physical address:

2.

3.



4

5

6

7

8 Attach a detailed financial statement showing the following information for the
applicant's prior fiscal year:

A. Sources of income;
B. Amounts of income;
C. Types ofexpenses; and
D. Amounts ofexpenses;

9. Proposed qualirying expenses to be paid with RAP tax money:

Detailed statement describing what the RAP tax money will be used for,
including, if applicable, bids for proposed improvements:

I l.

12. If the applicant has received RAP tax money within the past three (3) years,
provide an accounting showing how the prior RAP tax appropriations have been
spent, or ifapplicable, the amount ofRAP tax money granted to the applicant that
is saved for a future project:

Applicant's phone number:

Applicant's fax number:

Applicant's email ad&ess:

Proof of applicant's non-profit status: _

10. Amount of RAP tax money the applicant is requestin E: _



13. Any other information the applicant would like to provide:

A notice statins the aoolication due date

Adopted 7/06.
Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 05 13-09

Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 1209-09-l
Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 0425-12
Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 0513- 15

Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 0413-16
Amended by Cedar City Ordinance No. 0708-20
Amended bv Cedar Citv Ordinance No.

NOW BE IT FURTHER ORDAIIIED by the City Council of Cedar City, State of Utah
that City staffis authorized to make such non substantive changes to the format and table of
contents of Chapter 39 as are reasonably necessary to facilitate this amendment.

This ordinance, Cedar City Ordinance No. shall become effective
immediately upon passage and publication as required by State Law.

Council Vote:

Hartley -
Isom -
Phillips -
Melling -
Riddle -

Dated this _ day ofNovember, 2022

GARTH O. GREEN,
MAYOR



ISEAL]
AfiEST:

RENON SAVAGE
RECORDER



CEDARCIryCOUNCIL

AGENDAITEM- IA

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

Mayor and City Council

Tyler Romeril

October 31, 2022

Clark Brothers Emuent Water Lease

DISCUSSION:

The City has a lease with Clark Brothers (dated Dec. 18, 1995) that concerns the use of
effluent water from the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant. The lease contains language in
Article 2-5 that if the lease is not renewed, it automatically reverts to a year-to-year lease. As a

result ofneither the City nor Clark Brothers renewing this lease, the lease is currently considered
year to yeiu.

Article l3-l outli[es the process to terminate the lease. This section states the City needs

to provide written notice to Clark Brothers 30 days prior to the annual payment date of its intent
to terminate. The annual payment date per the lease is December 31"r. As long as the City
provides written notice 30-days prior to December 3lst we can legally terminate this lease any
year the City wishes to.

Please consider whether it is in the City's best interest to terminate this lease.


